Jacqueline Gamez v. Chipotle Mexican Grill, Inc. et al
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UNITED STATES

JS-6

DISTRICT COURT

CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
WESTERN DIVISION

JACQUELINE GAMEZ, an individual

Plaintiff |
VS.

CHIPOTLE MEXICAN GRILL, INC.,
a Delaware corporation; CHIPOTLE
SERVICES, LLC, a Colorado
corporation; CHIPOTLE MEXICAN
GRILL SERVICE, a business entity o
unknown form; CHIPOTLE
MEXICAN GRILL, a business entity
of unknown form; CHIPOTLE, a
business entity of unknown form;
CHRISTINA COLE, an individual; anc
DOES 1 through 20, inclusive,

Defendants.

I. INTRODUCTION

Plaintiff seeks to remand an employmergattility discrimination, wrongful termination
and labor code violation case s$tate court, arguing that the removal was not timely and

amount in controversy does not meet the $75,000nmim threshold required for a federal cas

CASE NO. 2:17-cv-01157-SVW-JPR

ORDER GRANTING MOTION TO
REMAND [24]

For the reasons stated below, this CAE&RANTS Plaintiff's motion to remand.
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II. FACTUAL BACKGROUND
Plaintiff alleges that she was employedgfendants as a foodgparer between 2004
and May 27, 2015. Dkt 23. In late April of 2014, Pldfrelaims to have sustained hand injurigs
while working, resulting in a disability. Dkt. 11-Ex. K at 7. Plaintiff's dotor instructed certain
work restrictions for Plaintiff, including approwately six months of no lifting more than 10
pounds and a break every 50 minutks. Plaintiff contends that a manager named Jorge
Martinez refused to allow her to take dfinute breaks for every 50 minutes of woldt. When
Plaintiff's doctor lifted the restrictions, &htiff had continued pain in her handd. Plaintiff
then requested to change positions, but cléiasa manager RaquellBax ignored her request
Id.

Around May 2015, Plaintiff alleges that magea Cole implemented a “no Spanish”
policy in the Chipotle branctvhere Plaintiff was employetd. at 8. Plaintiff reported the policy
to human resources because she believed it was in violation of thiel.l&s.a result, Plaintiff
contends that Cole reduced Plaintiff's hotfrsm her normal 40 hours per week to 12 hours per
week.Id. Plaintiff unsuccessfully mtested the hour reductiolal.

Plaintiff further alleges that ®intended to ostracize her lgjecting Plaintiff's offer to
aid a new employee, and instead instructetiffarent employee to aid the new employ&e.
Plaintiff alleges that Cole instructed other eayales to surveil Plaintiff to ensure compliange
with the “no Spanish” policy, and that she ie@nded Plaintiff for saying “salud” instead of
“bless you” to a coworker who sneezed. Plaintiff also claims unfair criticism by Cole, and
that Cole texted other managers not to corRéanntiff for assistance nqrovide her with work-
related courtesies$d. at 9.

Plaintiff requested a trafer to another stordd. Cole refused, saying she receivgd
complaints from other employees thaaiRtiff did not work well with otherdd.

Plaintiff claims Cole told Riintiff there would be consequees if she complained to &

r=—4

manager outside the store, and Pl#inbuld quit her job if she was unhappy. at 10. Plaintiff

was terminated from her employment on May 27, 20d4.5.
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I11.PROCEDURAL BACKGROUND
On July 28, 2016, Plaintiff Jacqueline Gam@PRlaintiff”) filed this action against

Defendants Chipotle Mexican Grill, Inc., Cbite Services, LLC, Chipotle Mexican Gril

Service, Chipotle Mexican Grill, Chipotle, and Christina Cole (“Cole”), in Los Angeles Coulinty

Superior Court (collectively, “Defendants”). Dkt.1.

In her complaint, Plaintiff advances eight claims under California law: (1) Discrimination

in Violation of Gov't Code §8812940; (2) Harassnt in Violation ofGov't Code 8812940; (3)
Retaliation in Violation of Gov't Code 881294@4) Failure to Preant Discrimination in

Violation of Gov't Code 8812940; (5) Faikirto Provide Reasonable Accommodation

Violation of Gov't Code 8812940; (6) Failure Engage in Good Faith teractive Process in
Violation of Gov't Code §812940; (7) Wrongful Teimation in Violation of Public Policy; and
(8) Retaliation under Cal. Labor Code §81102.5, 1102.6. Dkt.1.

On September 16, 2016, Defendant Cole fdedemurrer and Motion to Strike Portion
of Plaintiffs Complaint. Dkt.1. On October 7, 2016, Plaintiffdd a First Amended Complaint
which dropped all of the claims asserted agaitde, with the exception of Plaintiff's cause @
action for Harassmentd. On November 10, 2016, Defendants filed a Demurer and Motio

Strike as to Plaintiff's First Amendment Complaihd. On December 16, 2016, the Cou

sustained the Demurrer on the ground that tihet Pimended Complaint was conclusory plef.

Id. Plaintiff filed a Second Amended Comipiaon December 27, 2016. On January 12, 20
Defendant Cole applieek parte to dismiss the entire action agst her. On January 12, 2017}
the Court held that Plaintiff's Second Amendedmplaint was strickeand gave Plaintiff two
days to file a Third Amended Complaint. Qanuary 13, 2017, Plaintiff filed a Third Amends
Complaint.

On February 13, 2017, Defendants removed the case to this Court. On February 17
Defendant filed a Motion to Dismiss the Secdbause of Action for Harassment. Dkt. 11. G
March 20, 2017, this Court dismissed the SedBadse of Action against Defendants pursug

to FRCP 12(b)(6) and Plaintiff was granted leéwdile an amended complaint. On April 10

in

n to

, 2017,
n
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2017, Plaintiff filed a Fourth Amended Complaikt. 23. The Fourth Amended Complair
does not include aa&im against Cole.

On March 15, 2017, Plaintiff fitk a motion to remand the casack to state court. Dkt.
17. On March 27, 2017, Defendants filed an opposttoRlaintiff's motion to remand. Dkt. 27,
On April 3, 2017, Plaintiff filed a reply memorandun further support of Plaintiff's motion to
remand. Dkt. 22.

IV.PRESENT MOTION

Plaintiff moves to remand to state coutleging that removal was improper because t
removal was not timely and the amountontroversy is below the $75,000 thresh&ek dkt.
17 at 1. Plaintiff alleges that Defendant’s Netiof Removal was untimely because the acti
was not removed within 30 days after filestirning that the case was removabile.

Defendant objects to Plaintiff's assertithat that removal was untimely. Dkt. 20 3.
They claim that removal is only required within 30 days where the initial pleading re
grounds for removald. If, however, certain details are obscured or omitted, Defendant hg
days from the revelation th#ttere are grounds for removédl. Defendants argue that Plaintif
omitted and misstated factual details from both the original Complaint and the First Amg
Complaint in connection with hdarassment claim against Cdle. Due to these omissions an
misstatements, Defendant argues that, it was ssipte to ascertain whether a valid cause

action could be stated againSble or whether Cole was frdulently joined until Plaintiff

provided factual details in her Third Amendédmplaint, which was filed on January 13, 201f7.

Id. Therefore, Defendants claim that Notice of Removal was timely because they file
February 13, 20117d. at 8.
V. LEGAL STANDARDS
A. Timely Notice of Removal
Federal courts have jurisdiction over all civil matters if the matter in controversy exd

the sum of $75,000, exclusive of interest and caastsl there is diversity of citizenship. 2
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U.S.C. 81332(a)(1). Civil actionsrought in a state court may bemoved to federal court if thg
action could have originally been filen federal court. 28 U.S.C. §1441(a).

Notice of removal of a civil action or proceeding must itezl fwithin 30 days from the
receipt of the complatnsetting forth the claim upon which such proceeding is based. 28 U

§ 1446(b)(L).

The removal statute is strictly construed, #mel court must reject federal jurisdiction if

there is any doubt as to etiher removal was propeDuncan v. Suetzle, 76 F.3d 1480, 1485
(9th Cir. 1996). The Ninth Ciwst has held that f[he strong presumption against remov
jurisdiction means that the defendant always H& burden of establishing that removal
proper.”Gaus v. Miles, Inc., 980 F.2d 564, 566 (9th Cir. 1992) (quotiXighimoto v. Federman-
Bachrach & Assoc., 903 F.2d 709, 712 n.3 (9th Cir. 1990)).
VI. ANALYSIS
A. Timely Notice of Removal
Plaintiff moves to remand this cassm the grounds that removal was not timel
Defendants oppose this motion andua that it was not possible &scertain whether there wa|
a valid case against Cole or whether Cole was fraudulently joined until Plaintiff's T
Amended Complaint, which was served on January 13, Z@&dkt. 20 at 8. This Court does
not find Defendants’ gument persuasive.
The test for fraudulent joindes, “[i]f the plaintiff fails to state a cause of action against
resident defendant, and the failure is obvious @ting to the settled rules of the state, tl
joinder of the resident defendant is frauduleMcCabe v. Gen. Foods Corp., 811 F.2d 1336,
1339 (9th Cir. 1987). “[F]Jraudulent joinder can be ascertained at the outset. Either the con
states a claim that possibly mbg cognizable against the pureal sham defendant or it doe|
not.” Smpson v. Union Pac. RR. Co., 282 F. Supp.2d 1151, 1157 (N.D. Cal. 2003).
Defendants’ claim that the Plaififis complaint was conclusory pledee dkt. 20 at 5.

Further, Defendants filed a Demurrer and Motin Strike Portions of the Complaint of

S.C.
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September 16, 2016. However, given Defendantarcithat the complaint lacked such basic

information, Defendants could have ascertaiineddulent joinder from the complaint itself.

“It is not necessary to wait unthe fraudulently joined defendamés tested the claims against|i

in state court and succeeded in defeatimgm on a motion to dismiss or demurresi.fnpson,

282 F. Supp.2d 1151 at 1157. Therefore, Defenddmsld have filed the notice of removal

within thirty days of receiving the complaint.

Further, Defendants are unaltecite a case that suppotteeir position tlat removal is

proper after a Plaintiff has amended the complaint but maintains the same causes of action. Any

doubt as to whether removal is propaust be construed in favor of remaldincan, 76 F.3d at
1485. This Court finds that defendants did not tinfgdytheir notice of removal. Therefore, this
court declines to address whether the amouobntroversy is met in this case.
|. CONCLUSION
Defendants have not shown by a preponderasfcthe evidence that this Court hg
subject matter jurisdiction. Defendants’ noticerefmoval was not timely and therefore, th

Court declines to discuss whether theoant in controversy meets the $75,000 minimu

threshold required for a federal case. Acaugty, this Court does not have subject matter

jurisdiction to hear this case, and Plaintiff's motion to remand to state CGRANTED.

IT 1S SO ORDERED

Date: April 20, 2016
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